
Evelyn: But this is an opportunity. Oh, you made biscuits.
[background conversation]
Oh, you're gonna be [00:00:30] filming.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: I was filmed once. I don't know where-where it is. I think it's in ,uh-
Art: Probably in the archive.
Evelyn: Uh, Southwestern [unintelligible 00:00:38].
Interviewer: Over the Southwestern College?
Evelyn: Yeah. I thought about the [unintelligible 00:00:47]. [laughs]
Interviewer: Oh, yeah?
Evelyn: Yeah.
Interviewer: I think, I'm gonna grab myself coffee too.
Evelyn: He doesn't look anything like his dad, does he?
Art: Mm-hmm. [unintelligible 00:01:02]
Evelyn: Which one is this one? Oh this is, um-- That one [unintelligible 00:01:28]. [00:01:30] [unintelligible 00:01:32].
Art: How are you doing?
Evelyn: How are you doing?
Art: The [unintelligible 00:01:44] is your opinion.
Interviewer: Easy time.
Art: As you can see there's hardly nobody here.
Evelyn: [laughs]
Art: They're off somewhere.
Art: Oh, yeah.
Art:  Everybody's played this before.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm. There's more stuff [00:02:00] outside. Camps coming up.
Art: Same way when the[unintelligible 00:02:05] goes up, workshops and stuff and different things. Whether it gets started people, don't come.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: They'd rather be doing whatever.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm. Yeah. So, um, the reason I asked you to come for the interview is, um, the department's doing a program called the Oral History Project and we're reaching out [00:02:30] to elders and to interview them so that we can learn more about your lives growing up, anything you wanna share. Things that you want the next generation to know or to do. Um, because a lot of times what happens is, uh, elders pass on and-and then their grandchildren or grandchildren's children don't get to hear your stories. They don't get to learn from you.
And then in this [00:03:00] way, it's sort of like your teachings and your stories get to echo throughout time and will be shared with the folks who never got a chance to-to meet you. Um, and so we're recording, um, video and audio in order to make, uh, videos that can be enjoyed now and in the future. And so the interviews are really loose. Some people like to talk about their childhood. Some people like to talk about their faith. It's all different.
Um, [00:03:30] so I'll ask some questions but feel free to take it down any road you wanna take it down. There's no strict question or anything like that. So, yeah, and I just wanna introduce myself so you know a little bit about me or where I'm coming from. Uh, my name is Plato Patch Caldwell. Um, [unintelligible 00:03:50]. I did not grow up here. I grew up in New Jersey. So in a lot of ways I'm new to the community, uh, even though I am [00:04:00] [unintelligible 00:04:00]. [clears throat]
Jerry Campbell is my uncle. Well, but his brother is actually my-my grandfather but a lot of people don't know him. His name, uh, was Bob Campbell. And, uh, I just came to Language and Culture in December. Started working as the archivist to better care for, uh, the materials we had back there. We have some videos, baskets, beadwork and old [00:04:30] documents. Things like that.
So I'm storing notes, preserving notes but also sharing them with the community in a bunch of different ways. Uh, one example is through, uh, archives open-house event that we have every quarter. We bring all the artefacts out and share a meal with the community and have a discussion. The next one will be in July so.
Evelyn: Where do you put- Where do you put the stuff at? You have it here?
Interviewer: Yeah. [00:05:00] Um, we could take a little, uh, tour back there. There's actually a room next to this office here which has an environmental control and lighting control. Um, so if there was ever like a fire or flood in this building, it doesn't actually affect that room at all because it's so-
Evelyn: Protected.
Interviewer: Yeah. Protected, exactly.
Evelyn: Good.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: And how far back does it go? Is that the new [00:05:30] garden?
Interviewer: [sighs] There are some archaeology things so there's some projectile points, arrowheads.
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Interviewer: I don't know how old those are. And then the more historical items. We have some [unintelligible 00:05:47] booklets written by Simon [unintelligible 00:05:49] .
Art: Mm-hmm.
Interviewer: Um, we have some Catholic prayer books written in Potawatomi from 1858, [00:06:00] and we also have a drawing from this artist. He wasn't very famous. Uh, his name was, uh, George Winter. But he's known for painting and drawing a lot of Potawatomi gatherings and meetings and things like that. And we have one of his sketches and that's from 1837.
Evelyn: Mm. That was the year I was born.
[laughter]
Interviewer: Yeah, so-- Yeah, we can take a [00:06:30] look back there for sure.
Art: Well, I suggest we, uh, do a live 'cause we were together and we can do that. Um, but some of the things if we shoot off into a different direction, um, I know we will take the whole afternoon. The reason I say that is I'm also the guy that made the walk from Detroit. Uh, Sacred Heart of Mary Church had 150th birthday [00:07:00] and at the last minute they decided they forgot to, uh, ask the Native Americans and we were the founders. Chief [unintelligible 00:07:07] was the founder of, uh, that church in the sense that he gave 40 acres and, uh, built like a little log-cabin type structure so they could say mass and then of course you walk to Detroit to get a priest.
Now they know we went once but they may have gone like four times. Uh, anyway so they had a re-enactment [00:07:30] walk and they were originally gonna walk from Silverpack to Detroit. And so that doesn't make sense because people there wouldn't know- know us and, you know, they wouldn't be expecting us when we got there if we made it all the way. So we're better off going from Detroit back to here 'cause this is where they're having celebration. And, um, and so that will have like celebrations of all kind of things.
So I-I-- Rather than trying to rush through it all and get it all done in an [00:08:00] hour, it be better off if I came back just by myself maybe or something. And we went through that walk, um-- So I suggest we just talk about when we grow up.
Interviewer: Okay.
Art: Uh, we was raised. Um, basically Northern Hartford. And-And the reason why I mentioned that is the fact that, uh, Northern Hartford was an old, ancient Indian Potawatomi village. And [00:08:30] at one time when I was young, a friend of mine, and I was in school, our house was right in front of it in County Line Road. And so we went back there looking and there was an old arch and it was the doorway to the old village. And it was still standing. It was like two-thirds standing but what was missing was the arch and the arch was-- There's no cement. What it was, was just one stone placed carefully on the other stone and it made that arch.
Interviewer: [00:09:00] Huh.
Art: And, uh-- And I noticed last week I called down here because they were-- the people who planned that field were the, uh, part of-- were the crickets. Um, that's there the village was. They were digging up the trees and it looked to me like they were gonna plough that part of it also. And so I mentioned in down here that they probably shouldn't mess with that old village area, that-- at least that smaller part of it. It would be artifacts [00:09:30] there that you wouldn't want people to plough up and that kind of thing.
And I don't know what they decided to do. I'm not part of the government of the tribe. I just made mentioned that they were messing with something they probably should not have. Um, but next to that across the creek, was a, um, our training orc. Now it got cut down and we pretty much believe it was in the 30s, uh, and if it was, uh, we knew the people that owned the farm [00:10:00] and the one we actually cut it down in the skies, Grandpa who had the farm and he knew about it.
And he we- at school- I went to school with him and we ran around together.
In fact, he- his dad told me the story, you know, and they decided they did it. They didn't realize the importance. Of course, he cut the trees down so he could have more-more field and plant things there. I didn't realize that was that old. That's [unintelligible 00:10:29] sort of thing. [00:10:30] I originally thought that if we could get a word and then they could replant the thing, and maybe somewhat somehow craft it. But now that I think about it, that's also happens to be the area where they used to go in and dig up the clay- it was clay and they used to use it at Hartford Motor Speedway, which is a half mile play track and they would use that clay on the racetrack and that's where they got the clay from.
And so there would be, you know, what, [00:11:00] two feet, three feet- part of the field gone. Of course, the [unintelligible 00:11:04] tree was maybe some of the deeper what would be there [unintelligible 00:11:07] piled along. They might have been preserved if it's clay because it seals the moisture in or out, however you wanna look at it. So there might have been something, but maybe we could still take the dirt itself because it would be sacred when they plant a [unintelligible 00:11:22]- if they decide to plant a new tree [unintelligible 00:11:24] on property so nobody can mess with it.
Or we could take the dirt and a ceremony [00:11:30] and then bring it back and they could plant some of the dirt with the new tree and put it here on property where we could protect it and keep it and nurture it and that type of thing. That would be something for the future, right? I'm not going to be around more 300 years to see if it grew up again. But that's just kind of the area that we live in. And, of course, there's other Native Americans living around there and we're not too far from [unintelligible 00:11:56] you're probably not familiar with [unintelligible 00:11:58].
[00:12:00] You can still find on a computer but it doesn't exist anymore, basically. But I have old maps that show Wester there and they show a bunch of dots. Now, this is 1800s, right? And these dots, and I believe that was another Native American village because they're not, they're not, you know, they're not laid out north, south, east or west. They're just dotted in an area and next up is correct. [00:12:30] And so we figured that had been an Indian village because who will build who would have built a ball together like that, because of the town's people built it in Hartford in wildly next to the railway tracks or something, you know, talented trailer with lines. So that's my suggestion. We just start from the beginning.
Evelyn: No, He mentioned that that there-there was an Indian village there in [unintelligible 00:12:55] and that's for sure.
Art: The fact that there's two plots of land [00:13:00] one for our token of bee whether it gets us name, which means dirty face but it does mean it's physically dirty. He was an alcoholic and he shaved his people. So they nicknamed him [foreign language] which means they're facing in the dirty-faced his people because he was an alcoholic. And then [unintelligible 00:13:20] himself had 40 acres there and we can find in our plot laughs you know where it is. This is the name and this is where he was [00:13:30 unintelligible]. But anyway, the villages there and we could see those types of things so I guess we could just start in the beginning.
Evelyn: You probably could find the descendants that live there, you looked in our case there might be in there.
Art: Yeah.
Interviewer: Where was [unintelligible 00:13:47] is it near Hartford?
Art: Yeah. North
Evelyn: North of Hartford. It's easy to find.
Interviewer: And when you were mentioning the doorway that you saw at the village, [00:14:00] it was made of stone?
Art: Mm-hmm. Stone.
Evelyn: [unintelligible 00:14:04]
Art: Yeah, so see we lived an area that was kind of famous, you know, one that was- still is it's just a matter of history and we also live we used to live near a cemetery-
Interviewer: Okay.
Art: -so that that whole area in there now when I taught him and writing just like anything else when they would migrate so at the time that really would have been [00:14:30] huge and would expand, you know, so it was a little-little wasn't like you know hundred people could have been hundreds and hundreds, however, they decided to group together and hot fishes all kinds of little later on-air pop off everyone it was big you know dam it was huge.
Interviewer: Was it great growing up?
Evelyn: Oh, growing up [unintelligible 00:14:58] when we was growing up [00:15:00] and we-we had a school houses that within the country- country- country schools that we went to. We didn't come into town
Art: What was the name of that kindergarten school?
Evelyn: That was corner-
Art: Stones corners.
Evelyn: -we were at the stones corners, we lived north of town. That's where that's not the first school that I went to because when I first started school [00:15:30] we lived in Georgia and my brother and I started school in [unintelligible 00:15:36] my oldest brother.
Art: What was that called? Little Red?
Evelyn: Yeah, it was called Red Mill-
Interviewer: Red Mill?
Evelyn: Uh- huh, and that was in [unintelligible 00:15:44].
Interviewer: [unintelligible 00:15:44] was pretty big town, right?
Evelyn: Yeah. Mm-hmm. Yeah. Was that in America?
Art: But we lived in a log cabin. What was the name, Becker's?
Evelyn: The log cabin we lived in?
Art: Yeah, near the-
Evelyn: Oh no, that was
Art: [00:16:00] -blueberry's swamp. It was swamped with people.
Interviewer: That was-- we talk about something till I think of it.
[laughter]
It was--They used to have blueberry marshes, called blueberry marshes. We had one on one side of the street. Now, these were country roads not paid. They were gravel dirt, and there was another one on the other side and it was called guy hills and river was on this side. [00:16:30] And then at summer time was when all the Indians came around and they and lived in tents. And they would pick they didn't call them blueberries, they called them purple berries. And they would come and they would pick those.
And we but we lived in the log cabin. We lived there [unintelligible 00:16:54]. There was our log cabin and there was another one next to us that was smaller [00:17:00] and there was an old Indian man that lived in that cabin. His name was Dokey, and he was an alcoholic and he was the singing Indian all the time.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: And he used to come by our log cabin at night and he'd be singing in Indian, he would be drunk. And these other Indians that would come, they would camp over here because this was woods. It's all woods, and where they lived on the other side of [unintelligible 00:17:28]. [00:17:30] So in the summertime It was really nice because we had all these other people there were with and was I think he was he was still in diapers yet but he was walking, and then my oldest brother and I were there and there were four of us.
My oldest brother and I restarted school there [00:18:00] at [unintelligible 00:17:59] school and then I don't think my little sister didn't start school there. They didn't start until we moved to Hartford. But we had to walk to school and it was a good two miles and the wintertime and all you walk to school.
Interviewer: You walked?
Evelyn: Yeah. You don't do that nowadays?
Interviewer: No.
Evelyn: We lived there for about maybe four years [00:18:30] before we moved to Hartford and then that suddenly started that the country schools don't corner and I think- Did you start school there?
Art: No.
Evelyn: No?
Art: No, when my mother was alive she can testify to the fact but I remember things I was all-all way down to a year and a half old because when we lived there, I followed Leo Alexis back home to his cabin-
Interviewer: Uh- huh.
Art: -he was over visiting and so then he went down the path, right? So he walked home [00:19:00] when it was evening and so my dad went somewhere, thought I was with my mother and my mother thought I was with him. But anyway, I followed them to Leo home. And then Leo was walking through the trees, and he would stop because he'd hear me. But then he'd kind of look around and he couldn't see anybody. So I stopped too.
And so when he took off again, I followed him. I would take off too then he'd hear me again. So then he had to think, and then he got kind of scary thought, maybe it was Mendoza tracking him, [00:19:30] you know, so then he kind of really looked around the third time and he saw me stand out. I was almost a year and a half. Then he picked me up and took me back home.
Interviewer: Oh my goodness.
Art: [unintelligible 00:19:40] said, "I thought this little guy was a Mendoza really scared me." It's all the way. And then my mom knew the story, of course, and then she could testify that was one year and a half or so. She said, when we're we're there to reflect for years. The timeline was right because I remember we moved- when we [00:20:00] moved to Hartford when I was three. You know, I thought I was about three. A little kid thinking how old he is, is not like an adult knowing that she was older than Steven and I was, so-- That seemed about right. The timeline is right.
Interviewer: It's funny that you remember being a year and a half old.
Art: Yeah. [crosstalk]
Evelyn: Yeah because my brother and I are the ones that babysat because my-my sister was born then, too.
Interviewer: Oh, yeah.
Evelyn: We had Art and Josie and [00:20:30] then my other sister Betty that we watched up while they went picking up Berry and at the same time my dad had to go in to Kalamazoo for surgery on his leg because he was crippled
Interviewer: Yeah
Evelyn: -and he had to have some more surgery. And so she was alone and then us two was out there with the kids. [laughs] But, you know, when you're- when you're, um, [00:21:00] back then you had responsibility more than so than the kids today. You were just more grown up and, course, you didn't have TV and laptops and all-
Art: Cell phones--
Evelyn: -that.
Art: Before electricity.
Evelyn: Yeah, nothing to distract you. You just had your work that you was supposed to do and you did it. You was able to do all [00:21:30] that kind of stuff, so--
Interviewer: How many siblings were there?
Evelyn: Altogether there was five of us.
Art: Two more though, they died then. We had- we had--
Evelyn: We had two older-
Art: Alex and Barbara died-
Evelyn: In Muskogee.
Art: -when they were like two years old. Childhood diseases, you know, back then.
Evelyn: They didn't make it to two years old. Barbara was just 18 months old when she died and she was the oldest. And then, Alexander, I think he made it to two [00:22:00] and a half.
Art: Yeah, see back then, they had like a 50% death rate, either at birth or prenatal care not being complete like it is now.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: And, uh, after we'd gotten a little older with childhood diseases, so the survival rate was not high like it is now.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: Course now [unintelligible 00:22:20] has any children, so
Interviewer: Yeah. They[unintelligible 00:22:20] 
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: Uh-huh. So that's why they moved away from Muskogee. [00:22:30]
Art: They didn't know. It could have been-could have been some validity, yeah, you know, the pollution out of the factories.
Interviewer: Really, was it really-
Art: Foundries and all that other stuff.
Evelyn: So they moved out the country here. I don't know why they moved to Hartford because-
Art: The dad probably, mom's dad.
Evelyn: Could be. Aunt Julia lived here, too
Art: Yeah, and wherever this place you're talking about is real close to my, uh, [00:23:00] Arthur Alexis, which is my grandpa's farm by then. And at one time it could have been a Centennial Farm. I don't know, did he [unintelligible 00:23:10] but his name was the first name on the property because it was part of that land grant thing they had for the Potawatomies in this area.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: And they centered the land and the farms right around the Catholic church because they knew the church and that's where they started it, that type of thing. Uh, and the whole thing was to get the natives more- [00:23:30] what's the word?
Interviewer: Together?
Art: Yeah, to get more, not civilized, but that's--
Interviewer: Oh yeah.
Art: [unintelligible 00:23:40] they want us to have farms and jobs and as you go to school and all that sort of stuff. And so they split the property up into forty-acre plots, so you could have a-- and a long time ago you could live on 40 acres. When I was a kid growing up at high school, the average farm was like 80 acres and with the kids and the dad had to work it. You know, [00:24:00] the family had to work the farm, but they never got rich. But they could survive being that way. Now farmers are all 1000 and 5000 acres and it's a business.
Interviewer: [inaudible 00:24:13]
Art: In fact that whole business works against the small farmer, because they just nose them out price-wise and then they buy off their little farms.
Interviewer: Right.
Art: So, but a long time ago, you could survive on a small, uh, plot of land and- and make not a [00:24:30] fantastic living, but you could make a living. In fact, you know, a long time ago people didn't have big fancy houses. You didn't need them. You know, after a while the kids grow up and they move out, so why have this? Or big fancy cars. Only a handful of people had cars that were really fancy, especially in a rural area like we lived in. It just wasn't needed. It wasn't popular or whatever, however you want to put it out.
Interviewer: They ate a lot better, too. [00:25:00]
Art: Oh, and natural stuff, you know, no preservatives in it and it tasted better.
Evelyn: Just like we were talking about earlier.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: You know, you didn't have all that fancy stuff to cook with. You ate plain.
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: You got used to it, you know. Oh, and another thing from our diets, too. We had a lot of macaroni and-- that we ate.
Art: Goulash.
Evelyn: Goulash.
Art: I love Goulash to this day.
Evelyn: Yeah, we ate goulash, spaghetti. [chuckles] [00:25:30]
Interviewer: So your parent, or your grandparents were from Hartford on your dad's side?
Art: On my dad's side, everybody's from up north, north of Muskegon.
Interviewer: Okay.
Art: We go up to an area called, what's that name of that little--?
Evelyn: Hamilton.
Art: Hamilton. You go up in there and there's all kinds of Morrisseaus and they're happy to see you. They're your 13th cousin or something, but around here to the [unintelligible 00:25:40] area and the Hartford area, but [00:26:00] up there it's just the Hamilton area.
Evelyn: You know you're our cousin, you're related to us.
Art: Yeah.
Interviewer: Oh, really.
Evelyn: You're Morrisseau.
Interviewer: Oh, well Jonathon's a Morrisseau. I'm Topash.
Art: Yeah.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: Yeah. through your marriage.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: The Morrisseau. I'll tell you the story real quick. The Morrisseaus, the S-E-A-U and the S-A-Ws. There were two brothers that married the same wife.
Interviewer: Really?
Art: The first brother [00:26:30] got killed and the second brother married the same woman, Angeline Louis Morrisseau. And so really, the S-E-A-Us and the S-A-Ws are closer than cousins. We're almost like half brothers and sisters-
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: -if you actually think about it. Because then you go down in the cousins and you figure that all out, but-
Evelyn: I always thought that Morrisaws, that-that-that your Morrisaws know that.
Interviewer: I don't know. All that John's ever told me, and a think our people don't know. [00:27:00] He told me once that he thought that there was two brothers, but that they got into a disagreement and so one of them changed his name. [chuckles]
Art: No. They-they-they-- He was killed. I'm not going to tell you how why got killed, but the husband can tell you, but he got killed. So then the next- the next brother loved the children, right, just like,
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: -you know would be naturally.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: And his brother's children. And then of course the wife was a single wife back a long time ago. [00:27:30] A single wife really had it bad. You think now and so she had nobody to take care of her and so he offered to marry her and she said, 'I'll marry you, but you got to quit drinking." And so she says, "And we'll see how you do." And so he quit drinking for- well, he quit drinking for a whole lifetime. But he quit drinking for the whole year. And she say, "Okay, you stayed away for a whole year now. I'll marry you." And so then they had children, right? So there's seven of them off to the Indian School, the government's making [00:28:00] them go to school, right?
And so how we going to tell the difference. So there's S-E-A-U by this brother and morr-S-A-W by this brother. And they had same names. There was two Josephs Morrisseaus, S-E-A-U, and S-A-W.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: They did that. That makes it even harder when you start figuring out your genealogy.
Interviewer: Yeah. you know Joseph Morrisseau was my grandfather, but which one, you know. Is it--
Art: Yeah, well you had to go by the last name spelling [00:28:30] and so--
Interviewer: Yeah, wow.
Art: But, you know, that's how they did it and uh, well, we're here, you know. But we had property, because my dad showed me and we had property. The family was successful. [unintelligible 00:28:40] and there was a regular group of Natives in [unintelligible 00:28:50] one time, because there's a cemetery there and they said there's a lot of Native names in that cemetery, old cemetery. And [00:29:00] in fact, it's just by the dam north of the- toward the I-94 and the dam area property in there, farm or something.
So the parents at one time were energetic and- and uh. Our grandparents, okay, Angeline and Louis and all them, their parents lived on property and they lived in a wigwam and they wouldn't live in a house, because they were the old way. And they said, "No, that's not the way you live and that's not the where you live. This is how you live [00:29:30] in this and you'll have community and family and all the things you need if you keep it the old way." So our dad didn't go to school until he was about 10 years old because there was so many of them, they miscounted and they didn't figure the name right. My dad's name was Joseph right? There's another Joseph Morrisseau, the S-E-A-U, so okay they sent the other one to school.
They didn't send my dad until my dad was about 10 years old before they made him go. They finally figured it out. And, um, so he had more of, uh, uh, upbringing in training the old native American way because he was trained in and lived with more with the old grandparents. Cause the houses were real close together. Like one was in the backyard of the other one. The stick house, you know, the regular old farmhouse like we have now.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: But, uh, and so he knew a lot of the old ways and, and he knew it was part of Ottawa, so he knew Ottawa, he knew Ottawa to me, he [00:30:30] knew Miami which was not even in existence, but they were then up in that area. So he knew some of the words, so he knew about three languages.
Interviewer: That's incredible.
Evelyn: Yeah. And, and they did that census too. They left off, uh, Josephine, his sister after Saturday.
Interviewer: Oh, did they?
Evelyn: Yeah, they did. She's not on there.
Art: Yeah, it was. Don't forget you got the people back those days were not educated like people are today. So like, and they probably didn't want to be there. [chuckles] You know what I mean? They're coming to your house [00:31:00] like census people do. And so they probably were there. Well, I want to get this done real quick, I'm out of here.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: So that's how they got there. Oh, we missed one. I don't care.
[laughter]
I know I'm not there to [crosstalk]
Evelyn: Indian people, you know, and they weren't talking English that well.
Art: Yeah.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: All right they said they missed her, Miss Josephine.
Art: Miss Josephine.
Evelyn: Said that she wasn't counted in the censor though when you go back in the, in the archives, she's not on there.
Art: She's not on there. [00:31:30] And the first thought was that maybe she was younger, but that's not true. She's older.
Evelyn: She was the oldest.
Art: Yeah. And she ended up going to the New York.
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: And marry, you know, uh, uh-
Evelyn: China man.
Art: A China man.
Interviewer: Oh, really?
Art: But that one-- What we're talking about one that had money cause they lived in a skyscraper then.
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: So that, that took money even back in 1950s because they went and visited her once there.
Evelyn: Yeah. Yeah, went up there with my dad, uh, well always dreamed of New York. She lived [00:32:00] there 36 East Broadway and I'll never forget the address. [laughs]
Interviewer: You still know the address. Wow.
Art: And you could probably look it up, but back then it was probably at least a half a million dollars to have that.
Interviewer: Oh, my goodness.
Art: You know, the, all the property there is over a man.
Interviewer: Did she still live in there, uh, the rest of her life?
Art: But she died there.
Evelyn: Yeah, she died there.
Art: She died there. She only got married at once I think.
Interviewer: Did she have any children?
Art: Did she have any children?
Evelyn: No.
Art: He did. Was his second wife cause he had children.
Evelyn: [crosstalk] Yeah. Cause he had a grandson that was living there with them when I [00:32:30] went out there.
Art: Yeah. So it was like a second wife to him.
Interviewer: Wow. [laughs]
Art: Uh, she used to send us, remember those?
Evelyn: She used to send us boxes-
Art: Boxes of those sugar cookies and, um, fortune cookies every Christmas.
[laughter]
That was kind of your day.
Evelyn: At first I didn't like them and then I got somehow like them. [laughs]
Art: Yeah. All, I remember is one time she came when we lived in the City Art from [unintelligible 00:32:59] [00:32:59] and I was about 10 years old or so. We moved from the country into the town and uh, she came to visit my brother. And, uh, far she could get on a bus or the train or whatever was Benton harbor or Saint Joe, she took a taxi cab from there to Hartford. Now this is in the fifties, right? I think it costs like around 20 bucks. She expected her brother to pay it. So my brother paid-- My dad paid it. [00:33:30] Now, mind you, probably the salary for a week was 50 max.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: And you pay out 20 for a bus ride or for a tech camp, right? So see that was. uh, quite a-
Evelyn: Chunk. [laughs]
Art: Kind of chunk, you know.
Interviewer: Yeah, [crosstalk]
Art: Like nowadays it'd be two or $300, you know, but you had to come up with it and, he, he did. And she stayed with us for a while and then she went back home. But they got a ride home.
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: There ain't no paying no [00:34:00] 20 bucks just to get her back to the train station.
[laughter]
Interviewer: Oh, no.
Art: And they had money.
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: They thought it was a reverse. You know, she, she'd come from New York. She, she'd see that money. We didn't, we were poor.
[laughter]
Evelyn: Well, like my son when I was on elders council and he was, uh, chairman, I went with him to, uh, DC and, uh, we, of course, we, [00:34:30] we, you, you take cab there. [chuckles] I ride in it-- When I rode in, the cab with them we get out and he says, "Mom, take, take taxi." [laughs] I don't have to pay [laughs]
Interviewer: Can you tell me about, um, your time on council, elder's council?
Evelyn: Oh, yeah, I was vice chair for probably about four years. So I was on with the Mark Moody for about probably four years. [00:35:00] And then I was done with Jackie Truks for four years.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Evelyn: It was very fun. Uh, while I was on there-- When I was uh, we got-- Always on a media conferences and, uh, we've had typical, uh, um, trips and you know, you had to go to those conferences and write down all that stuff and then bring it back and I tell it to [00:35:30] council and you know. I forgot a lot of that stuff that you did, I don't know. Those stuff that you bought back and what it did, but it always does enough. So that makes things better. Always little bit better all the time. And so now they say to me when there's a open they'll say, "Are you coming around?" I'd say, "I did my time. You still younger and still have time."
Interviewer: Yeah.
[laughter
Art: So they all stay determined.
Interviewer: Yeah, but more people want you to keep working forever. [00:36:00] So when, when was this like, uh?
Evelyn: Uh, that was, uh, 2005 and six from five, 2005 on up.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm. Okay. Yeah.
Art: I was on the council too, but I think it was in the '90s.
Interviewer: Oh, really?
Art: Yeah. I was on very long. Uh, back, in the beginning, they would have meetings, uh, whenever they could. And so [00:36:30] sometimes they would have meetings during the week, like it's 7:00 AM in the morning. Well, I was working, so there's no way I could make to meetings. And if you miss four meetings in a row, then they automatically would vote you out.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: And uh, I could have reapplied and I says, no I'm too busy.
Evelyn: Yeah. You know, back then they pay people be on the council now.
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: Back then it was volunteer. So-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Evelyn: So- [crosstalk]
Art: Yeah. There was no salary and I was working and I just could-- I did it to try to help [00:37:00] them out. The only thing I got them, to help them pass was, um, to incorporate themselves. So like if they were got-- If they were getting sued, you couldn't sue the individual person on the council. You had the sue the whole council, and the only thing you would get is whatever they had money wise in the, uh, the bank and they only had like 2000 bucks.
So if you sued them, you're going to get $2,000 and that was all you're going to get. And so I told them they should incorporate themselves. [00:37:30] I think it was a subsection A, but like I knew about it from at work. They did it, it work for some. And so I knew about it so I mentioned it to them and they did pass it in the very beginning stages of, you know, starting to become a tribe. And so I did help them that way. I think I was on the thing for about six months, maybe eight or nine months at the most. And it was just too hard for me to make to meetings.
Interviewer: Yeah. When you [00:38:00], um, we're growing up, uh, some other elders you've talked about every once in a while there, they would have a meeting. Um, did you hear about any meetings when you were little?
Art: Oh, yeah. My Dad was on the very first one to try to become a tribe.
Evelyn: Oh, yeah.
Interviewer: Really?
Evelyn: Dad become tribal council.
Art: [crosstalk].
Interviewer: So it was just in the 40s or?
Art: No, it had been in the fifties, right? Cause we saw a newspaper, there's a, there's a picture of the tribe has it, my dad's on it.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: And, uh, [00:38:30] Winchester [crosstalk]
Evelyn: We just didn't know who it was.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: Yeah. Winchester and I can't forget it.
Evelyn: Dick Winchester, there is a page, Dick Winchester there is there-
Art: [unintelligible 00:38:40]
Evelyn: Um, I don't know his first name. No. And then Mike Williams, Mike Williams is on the end and then on the next role there's some guy, and then there's John we saw, and then I don't know who the next guy is, either.
Art: The youngest guy [00:39:00] is even dead. The youngest guy was honored. They showed me, they told me who it was and, uh, they said, "Oh, no, he passed away like 20 years ago." [chuckles] Oh my goodness, you know. And he was the youngest guy out and you could tell he was real young, looking in the picture and--
Evelyn: Dick Winchester?
Art: Was it Dick Winchester? Maybe it was,
Evelyn: He's the youngest looking on honor, but gosh he died a long time ago.
Art: Yeah, I know. I bet it was Dick Winchester.
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: [00:39:30] So we kind of have a history. My Dad was interested in it.
Evelyn: Yeah. Dad was honored and then my son was chairman.
Interviewer: Who is your son?
Evelyn: John. John Miller.
Interviewer: Oh, okay.
Evelyn: Yeah. Or John Maseal Miller. [laughs] Yeah.
Art: So we've helped them. Get our dues.
Evelyn: We've kind of got our share and then now it's my brother.
Art: I'm not an any [unintelligible 00:40:01]
[00:40:00]
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: I work for the Family Welfare Commission.
Evelyn: Oh, do you?
Art: I don't work for them work for them. I'm retired but I mean, uh, I'm on the Family Welfare Commission and then I am an expert witness for them when I-- they when they go to court. Want people to testify how they would do it you know, 200 years ago. So, they do that and when they either uh, take the child away from a person or uh, put it in a foster home or adoption, go to court. [00:40:30]
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: My tribe's got lot of ills and-
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: -when I first went, from the very first meeting, I came back and all I did was pray for my family. That I'm so grateful that it was not like that.
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: You know, there's so many young people that just ruin their lives through drugs and alcohol and there's no reason for it. Well, I don't know the reason.
Evelyn: Now, when you to New Mexico was that for um, business for the your job? [00:41:00]
Interviewer: Well, I actually went to um, graduate school at the University of New Mexico. So-
Evelyn: Oh.
Interviewer: -I uh, lived there since 2012 and then just recently moved back in December.
Evelyn: Oh, you lived there.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: How long did live there?
Interviewer: Um, about five years.
Evelyn: Oh.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: Oh.
Interviewer: And um, John I-I had met him a few years prior but he also came down to Albuquerqe because he wanted to do um, [00:41:30] Indian Law program down there and so, we were there together for about three years and then once I started this job uh, at language and culture, I moved back up and now, he's back up here too.
Evelyn: Oh.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: So you guys met in New-New Mexico?
Interviewer: No, we met a few years prior to that. Um, I was up here doing like a college internship and then um, but we really got to know each other when he when he came down here.
Evelyn: Oh, [00:42:00] how nice.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: Then we've been there. The tribal elders have been there several times, I've been there and do other conferences several times. It's a beautiful place.
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: The last time we were um, they have a All-Nation-
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: -powwow.
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: Comes in that big old stadium-
Interviewer: Uh-huh.
Art: -and some guys are filing in and some guys are filing out.
Interviewer: Yes.
Art: So, we had a powwow at probably at the um, the Labor day one at the end of the year right? Then the police officers were there, they're all by themselves like [00:42:30] that. I went out and sit there and talk with them guys you know, cause nobody's there hanging out with them.
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: So, I sat down and we were just talking about what we were doing, ''Oh, where-where you've been?'' ''Oh, I just came back bro. Albuquerque, New Mexico and went to that All Nations powwow. I says, ''Man, there was like about 20,000 all young, fit, native American men.''
Evelyn: Uh-huh.
Art: You know, muscular and I just said, ''Man, there was about 20,000 of us there. I said, ''You know, we could have taken over a small country.'' I said, ''There were so many of us there.'' [laughs]
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: I said, ''We're could have easily over- overran [00:43:00] Washington DC for a couple [laughs] of days. [unintelligible 00:43:02] like, [laughs] cops looked at me you know, I got you [unintelligible 00:43:08]
Evelyn: There was a lot of Indians there, though.
Art: Oh, man.
Evelyn: Gosh [crosstalk]
Art: And then you know, you got one guy he's dancing but he's got his whole family there to support him so, there were just people all over the place and uh, we kept I couldn't figure out why they didn't go to like, a pro stadium.
Interviewer: Yeah, I don't know. [00:43:30]
Art: Maybe because of the money or something but you know, I mean, cause they actually needed an area far bigger than the one that they were at uh.
Interviewer: For a long time they squeezed in [crosstalk] basketball.
Art: They need like-like a pro football or something.
Evelyn: Because there were people outside too.
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: It wasn't just [crosstalk] inside.
Art: Everywhere. There were parking lots and-and blocks away and--
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: Well, they had those [unintelligible 00:43:49] they were selling outside. There was people-
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: -all around there.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: Yeah.
Interviewer: It's a huge affair.
Evelyn: A lot of people.
Art: And of course, it's New Mexico so, like, there's no shade [00:44:00] and it is hot.
Evelyn: It was hot.
Interviewer: Yeah. [laughs] [crosstalk] That's the only thing I don't miss, is all the heat. It's a little bit too much for me I think. [laughs]
Evelyn: Mm-hmm, stay in air conditioning as much as you can.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm. [laughs] Did you um, go to a lot of powwows later on in-in the area? And um-
Evelyn: No, the [crosstalk] next place we went was Grand Canyon, wasn't it?
Art: Yeah, but uh, when we were when we were growing up, there was probably like, one powwow a year [00:44:30] and I think it was in Grand Rapids. Do you remember that? Them talking about that, cause Julia [unintelligible 00:44:36] sometimes.
Evelyn: There were there was one powwow that we had and it was down by um, down by the river north of town. They had a powwow there.
Art: Oh, I but I'm talking about when we were kids growing up.
Evelyn: Oh, when we was kids?
Art: We were kids growing up did you ever hear them?
Evelyn: Mm-mm.
Art: Uh-uh. You wouldn't hear them. Uh, don't forget it wasn't until the 70's that they okayed the [00:45:00] religious part of uh, of us and then uh, so, they had the ceremonies but they were underground-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: -you know, the people that were pipe carriers and stuff, they still remembered all of the-- what they had to do but it wouldn't be openly done. So, if there was uh, like, a passing or something that somebody wanted a pipe ceremony, they had one but they'd have like, secretly. They'd have it in somebody's house. Um, my dad once when I was really young I, and I was a little guy, took me to [00:45:30] a guy's funeral.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: Now, mind you, when they used to do a funerals a long time ago, uh, they'd lay them out in the house and the guy was-- the guy who'd passed had sitti-- had an Indi coffin, old pine coffin you know, um, a simple pine coffin and they had him leaning against the wall and then uh, and they would come in and talk about him or-or somebody would say prayers for him and-and in Native American and then um, but the-the guy's character was no, he was a [00:46:00] relative but they guy's character was iffy you know-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: And they had they had heard the uh-- it was dark you know, and they-- don't forget in the country it was dark, there was no electricity, there's no light.
Interviewer: Right.
Art: You got candles or you know, kit, you know all that. Oil lamps so, there's not a lot of light, right? I don't know whether you could hear uh, an old woman laughing in the woods. My dad grabbed my hand and said, "It's time for us to go home," and when we went home, the way we went, we went past that [00:46:30] woods you know, the road went past the woods but when we left, we took it all the way around. We did not go back there [laughs] he took us in the car, our old beat-up car right, and we went all the way around. We didn't go by that woods. We could hear that woman laughing in the woods.
Interviewer: Did he ever say anything about it?
Art: He figure it was a man [inaudible 00:46:46] or something.
Interviewer: Oh.
Art: He didn't want no part of it.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: And they don't want you to fall. They don't want it to fall in your home here. So we left and there were still a lot of people there. And they had- they had an outdoor, uh, spiritual fire and everything.
Interviewer: Yeah. [00:47:00]
Art: Now I don't even remember who it was. [crosstalk] All I remember is-- I didn't I didn't stay very far from my father. I was quiet [laughs] like a shadow. If he could have had a shadow I was that.
[laughter]
It was at night though.
Interviewer: Oh, man.
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: I never really-- and I still don't. I don't uh, I knew the man [unintelligible 00:47:20] was bad but dad never really explained it to me. My mom did but the way [00:47:30] she explained it to me, it was hard to believe so, I don't I really didn't really-
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: -understand it.
Interviewer: Would you mind sharing what she explained to you?
Evelyn: No.
[laughter]
Art: But we-we saw other things. I remember one time-
Evelyn: Yeah, you could I-I have seen things.
Art: Yeah.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: But did you see the light at Rush Lake? You guys are as kids, teenagers-
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: -parked there.
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: And you did didn't you?
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: Ralphy Arnold and them guys.
Evelyn: Mm-hmm.
Art: So, she used to [unintelligible 00:47:59] they'd come back and tell us a story [00:48:00] but um, we were sitting out on our porch and it was almost dark. It was like, right between everything and there was a woods out behind our house uh, but there was like, you know, the old trees they separate the-the property with trees so everybody knows who the ground belongs to and they went all the way down to the lake which would be [unintelligible 00:48:18] Lake and uh, we were staying out there one time and there was an orb that floated about two or three feet above those trees down to the lake.
It wasn't it wasn't completely [00:48:30] dark, you know, and it wasn't completely you know, [unintelligible 00:48:31] uh, transitional point of the day and we all sat there as-- our whole family sat there and watched it.
Evelyn: And this was sort of when this is before they had all these fancy stuff that you know, that they have nowadays.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Evelyn: They didn't have that then.
Art: Yeah. So, we'd see things. I-I could talk forever because I've seen things at Rush Lake and Aunt Julie would say, ''Don't be telling people that you [00:49:00] [laughs] [laughs] They'll be getting scared and they won't come out with you."
Interviewer: Yeah. Whatever it is about Rush Lake?
Art: Oh, there's a lot of uh-
Evelyn: It's not just Rush Lake.
Interviewer: Oh.
Art: Yeah, there's natives there.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: Lots of them.
Interviewer: You said not just Rush Lake like, other lakes too?
Evelyn: Well, you cer-- you-you it's a point of where uh, native, all-all native people are.
Interviewer: I see.
Art: Some of them believe, see they-they would put those things by the lake cause [00:49:30] uh, that lake has a little contributory and you-you could back go up the back way of it and go into the Paw Paw River. If you can get to the Paw Paw River, you can get into Lake Michigan.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: If you can get into Lake Michigan you get out onto the ocean. So you can travel-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: -one the water so, and they-they think that spirits can travel on that water-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: -and go where they wish. Act like a roadway, you know?
Interviewer: Makes a lot of sense when you think about the journey afterwards, when you [crosstalk]
Art: Mm-hmm [00:50:00]
 And there-and there's two schools of thought and one of them is that the body uh, doesn't leave on its journey back to [unintelligible 00:50:10] you know, heaven-
Evelyn: Mm.
Art: -uh, until it gets put in the ground. Others say they're here for years, they've seen them. They get to visit, you know, those who are in good standing so to speak. They get to visit all the places they used to be uh, on earth and then they go. Whichever way it is uh, [00:50:30]  they've seen them afterwards, the-the other people who know them. They've seen their spirits. They see them around here so they know-- and that's why I've seen them myself so I can't say I don't believe it cause I do see them.
Evelyn: Mm.
Art: But that goes back to my walk. I always-- when I made my walk, uh, there were supposed to be like 46 of us go on that walk. I ended up being the only one and-and I think because I was the only one, I was given [00:51:00] all kinds of things because I-I did it, you know?
Evelyn: Mm.
Art: And one of them is uh, a great gift of spirituality. I can sense things when I'm around uh, holy places, even if I don't know it was holy, no sign, no nothing, you know, and or something buried that's really holy or the-or the other way too. Now when you sense evil, what you feel is uh, anger, rage and hatred, all the negative emotions and uh, [00:51:30] maybe the hair on the back of your neck will stand up and you tell if you're like in danger like if something was physically hunting you, you know-
Evelyn: Mhm.
Art: -but if-- but when it's good then it's-it's calm, it's love, it's-it's respect, it's joy, it's all the positive emotions. So you can tell the difference from one or the other as well and uh, that's not something I can turn on and turn off. It-it just happens.
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: It's just-it's just a gift [00:52:00] and it's helped me uh, in my diaconate, I'm a Deacon. Uh, I can speak from the heart because there're spirits there and they allow it to be there and so a lot of people recognize it. And oddly enough, the ones who recognize it the most is the Caucasian people.
[laughing]
Art: They-they love to hear me preach, you know? "Hey, have this guy come over for a [unintelligible 00:52:21]" but uh-but that's just-- you know, that's just nature.
Evelyn: I want to tell you about an incident. [00:52:30] Was it on your uh, 60th wedding anniversary or 50th?
Art: Must have been 60th. My anniversary?
Evelyn: Yeah.
Art: Oh, the 50th, we just had.
Evelyn: Well, they-they just had their 50th wedding anniversary last summer-
Interviewer: Congratulations.
Evelyn: -and Art was standing up in front and he still had his white um, robe on because he's a deacon and he was standing up there and this round, big glow came on the front of his white robe [00:53:00] and it was a picture of the Virgin Mary. He didn't know it was there.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: No, we didn't see it.
Evelyn: Well, he didn't see it but we took-- a lady that was sitting there took a picture of it and she called me up there and she said, "Look up there," and I looked and it was a picture of the Virgin Mary on his gown.
Interviewer: My goodness.
Evelyn: It was glowing. Just as pretty as can be.
Interviewer: Wow.
Evelyn: Did she give you a picture of it?
Art: No, she better though? But you know-you know how the-the phone company will upgrade your phones?
Interviewer: Yes.[00:53:30]
Art: I had four pictures of that-that had, um, religious things and two of them and the, um, thing wiped out so I'm actually going to try and get a hold of uh, this company and try and see if- [crosstalk]
Evelyn: I've never seen anything-
Art: -they can get back my pictures-
Evelyn: -like it before.
Evelyn: Well, that's pretty--
Art: -cause they're not truly gone, you know. We think they're gone but they're-they're there. What the computer does it changes the number and so you think it's gone but it's not. Where is that?
Interviewer: Huh.
Evelyn: Did she-did-- uh, have you got a picture like that at home?[00:54:00] 
Art: There it is.
Evelyn: Oh, you've got it.
Art: No, but-but this not what yours is talking about but I have one there. You can see the orb just above my head. You can see the orb just above my head. In the next picture that I had, you could really see it. Now, there's no lamp or candle above us and I had another picture-
Evelyn: Well, I didn't see that one.
Art: -showing there's no-- nothing there.
Evelyn: But this was like that. See how that is there-
Art: That orb?
Evelyn: -but it was a whole thing and inside of it was a picture of the Virgin Mary [00:54:30] and it was on his white gown.
Interviewer: Mm.
Evelyn: You ought to get a picture-
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: -of that from that lady.
Art: Yeah, you better tell her I'd [unintelligible 00:54:37] when you see her but here's another one. See my other picture over-- well, here's a list of all that. That's the whole family.
Interviewer: Nice.
Art: I got a big family, right? But over here in this other picture, it shows the orb and it's a wider picture and you can see that over by the left here by the podium, we call it the ambo, there is a glow and that glow is the [00:55:00] -is the books and the secretary and the-the stuff sits on this little table when Mass is over and you can see that glows. There's orbs above my head, is there-- but besides that little table, what you can see is also-
Evelyn: Let's see.
Art: -glowing. You can't see it there because it's a different picture of that little table behind the ambo.
Evelyn: All right, that glow, it's bigger in this picture, though.
Art: Yeah, yeah, [00:55:30] that one is-- but tell her I want that other picture. I didn't-
Interviewer: So you didn't see it?
Art: I didn't see it. We didn't see this either. Nobody saw this. They took pictures of-- my daughter was taking pictures and she took the pic and said, "Oh my goodness." She said, "Dad, look what happened to that picture."
Interviewer: Saw it later.
Evelyn: Uh.
Art: Let me-- I have another picture. I did a wedding. Where is that picture?
Evelyn: I did-- I came to that. [crosstalk]
Art: I did a wedding first-
Evelyn: I thought she'd given the pictures but I guess she didn't.
Art: Right here. I did a picture for a couple and the gal was Native.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: It's up by the bridge uh, Mackinac Island and you can see I'm glowing.
Evelyn: Look at that.
Art: I'm giving the homily, I'm preaching. All the readings they chose for their wedding. John, do you want to see this picture?
John: Marcus?
Art: Yeah [chuckles] He's reading something. [00:56:30] 
[crosstalk]
Oh this one- I got a beer bottle there. How'd you do that? You gotta kinda hold it sideways like that. You can see I'm glowing. I did a wedding for a couple and I'm giving the homily, the preaching for the readings they picked out-
John: Mm-hmm.
Art: -and my body's glowing and we didn't know it either and I uh-- after they started getting them developed [00:57:00] and stuff and they were-- the-there was an actual photographer um, she sent me an email and she says, "If you would sign this," she says, "I wanna submit this to-
Evelyn: [unintelligible 00:57:10] 
Art: -when they have contest for photographs-
Evelyn: That's something different.
Art: -and she says, "We know this is not staged. We know that we didn't try to do this artificially, you know?" She says, "This just happened." and she says, "I'm amazed and everybody who sees it is amazed and so I wanna-- you know, she's--
Evelyn: Well, fix [00:57:30] it for me. It always goes like that for me.
Art: I don't know. Well, here's the bottom.
Evelyn: It doesn't want me to see it.
Art: See? If you hold it sideways you can see it.
Evelyn: See, as soon as I touch it.
Art: Just let me hold it.
Evelyn: I must be [inaudible 00:57:44]
[laughter]
Art: Uh, yeah, for some reason it doesn't stay- [crosstalk]
Evelyn: Okay, it's [crosstalk].
Art: -it doesn't stay until-- there you can see it all the way.
Evelyn: Yeah, I see it.[00:58:00]
Art: And we looked at other things cause like, you know, if the light was shining on something else but there-there-- we couldn't find anything. There was no sky lights. No like, you know-- what it is is a-- they-- it's a church that was there in the 1800s and uh, uh, the only part that was left was like a couple of beams. So they took a couple of beams and then they-they re-did it, you know, they copied it and uh, like the old church used to be and then they put it in this fort.
Interviewer: Wow.
Art: And so-- but it's [00:58:30] not-- they don't ever have Mass there. They don't ever, but they allowed the wedding there and stuff and so uh, I told them. I said, "You ought to fix the thing up so you can have Mass there every year. At least once an year would qualify it," and then uh, you know, we had to work with the Catholic church and stuff and then get it qualified as in anybody can get married. Man, we had to go through paperwork you wouldn't believe cause the church doesn't allow garden weddings. That means you can't get married outside or wherever you want. It has to be inside [00:59:00] a church and this was not a church because it is- it never was a church, you know? Because it's a rebuilt one, you know?
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: It's-it's a-- and the only part that was-was ever part of the other church was a couple of old beams they saved but anyway, the spirit was there. I can prove we sent it to the bishops. The one bishop in, um, north and the one-- my bishop here. Whatever the case may is uh, [00:59:30] the Holy Spirit approved, 'cause it showed up. [chuckles] And actually, what happened the people got married in church the day before uh, in another church local that was nearby and then this was like you get your-- they call it a marriage blessing. If you never got married in church before then all of a sudden you wanna get married in church, that's what they did. So it looks like a-a marriage but it isn't.
Interviewer: Mm.
Art: And the [inaudible 00:59:55] is a replica, so to speak. So [01:00:00] - Okay, you think of anything else?
Evelyn: [inaudible 01:00:02] you ask a question that you wanna know.
Interviewer: Well, everything that you shared I'd love to know [laughter] [crosstalk]
Art: You don't know any of it, so it's like reading a book for the first time.
Interviewer: I guess, um, I guess if I had one question it would be what would you like for the next generation to do differently or to know about you? What would you like to see in the future?
Evelyn: What I'd like to see in the future?
Interviewer: Uh-huh.
Evelyn: [01:00:30] Oh gosh. I- I think things are going pretty good for the future, you know? Kids are doing pretty good. I think they are.
Interviewer: Good.
Evelyn: I don't know what Art thinks.
Art: What do you think, money-wise? Is that what you're thinking, or?
Evelyn: No, I'm not thinking money-wise. I'm thinking uh- class-wise and their studies and [01:01:00] what they're doing. I think- I think we've got more kids that are staying in school now then we had before then-
Art: Yeah.
Evelyn: -we had before.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Friends: Because I know a lot of kids when I was going to school, as soon as they were 16, they were dropping out of school.
Interviewer: Hmm.
John: Yeah, they'd quit.
Evelyn: And I don't think they're doing that now.
Interviewer: So you're happy to see-
Evelyn: I'm happy to see that they're staying in school.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Evelyn: More now than they were and I-m-I'm happy to see that, that they're doing that, [01:01:30] and I think it's because the tribe is paying more attention to our young people. There was nobody paying attention to them when I was going to school.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Evelyn: You know, you went to school, good. You know, nobody cared. That's the way I- I feel. I don't know how Art feels.
Art: Wha- I would just- I think the um- the ills part of the tribe. I'm talking about the ills, the drug use, [01:02:00] and all that-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: -which leads to multiple other problems, you know, either they get uh- thrown in jail for the drugs, or they get thrown in jail for the uh- distribution or manufacturing of it because it's so expensive that either they got to uh- deal it to keep up with the cost. Uh- that's the only way you can be is either a dealer or- something or manufacture the methamphetamine or whatever. Uh- and the reason for all that to me, in my thinking of it, is that they've gotten away [01:02:30] from their spirituality.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: Uh- a lot of people will say they're Native American spirituality, but they don't even practice that. They just say that, but that's kinda like their excuse, and if you look at the uh- the Natives from a long time ago, they were very religious. And- and anybody that you will talk to will admit that they were probably more religious than we are, and uh- let me just share one last word.
Interviewer: [01:03:00] Mm-hmm
Evelyn: [crosstalk] Well, there is one thing that I did forget. Uh- religion seems to be going out of our young people's lives. They do need to- a lot of them need to be going back to church. I think they- they do and uh- it's my point of view, I know, uh- my grandkids are- some of them go to church. I'd say half of them go to church. The other half doesn't.
Art: [01:03:30] I hope I can find it. What- what I have is uh- if I can get into my file- is that guy that came around was gonna write the book.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: Well, this is a reading from uh- must be here-- Saved Documents. Nope, that's [inaudible 01:03:55] [01:04:00] Anyway, basically what the Indiana Historical Society copied the letters of um, Father uh, Father Burro.
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: Who was a Spanish priest. Not Spanish, uh, French, who went to Detroit to get permission to come into this area and that's the- that's the one who Chief O'Kagan met and he- he uh-- originally we thought he uh, knew the Lord's Prayer in English [01:04:30] but it had to be in French because it was the French Jesuits that came through here, and that would be the language of the day, so to speak, for them, but at any rate, so uh, what had happened was they came through on an exploration.
They were looking for gold or silver, whatever, right? Uh, but they were religious, but that's what they were looking for, things that they could deal with, right? And so they met the Saint Joe- the Indians on the Saint Joe river, and they taught 'em the Lord's Prayer and it had to be in French. Now, we had-- [01:05:00] we did not have a written language and we couldn't read or write English or French, so it was all memory.
So 100 and some years later, they want to start the church at Silver Creek, so Chief O'Kagan goes to Detroit where he knows there's a church, and asked them to send a priest. Well, Father uh- Burro happened to be there, and so he recites this Lord's Prayer and it had to have been in French-
Interviewer: [01:05:30] Mm-hmm.
Art: -that's the only thing that makes sense. So, he remembers the Lord's Prayer in French, and it was because he so impressed the Father Burro with the fact that he- they remembered it from generation to generation because we didn't have a written language, and even if we did, we wouldn't understand French anyway-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: -and he remembered it and recited it, and so then he came here at least to take a look, to see what kind of community was here, and then they talked him into staying, and he fell in love with the Native American people, and he himself stayed [01:06:00] uh, and so that's what all that started out for the- for the thing, and you can see that if they were very religious in the beginning, right? Nobody's arguing that. All of a sudden they see this Christianity, they knew it was the next step. They knew it was their- their way to salvation.
They just didn't know the story yet, and so, once he got them here he- he schooled them, of course, and then they- they became Catholic, and it's the later generations [01:06:30] that fall- that fell apart, but at any rate, so Chief O'Kagen's wife, who was like a uh- uh- soothsayer, I don't know what. She could read the future and all these things. She would interpreted all his dreams. You know the things he would see and stuff? Well, he saw me. When I made my walk from Detroit, I saw him in a little uh- swampy area, and what he was doing, he had this little um- smudge fire, and [01:07:00] he was smudging himself because the insects were bothering him, you know? The mosquitos and the horseflies-
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: -and so he was smudging himself and then that way would repel the uh- insects and uh- the plant he was smudging himself with was- it's called marigold.
Interviewer: Uh-huh.
Interviewer: And marigolds have something in it that automatically repel insects.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: And so he knew that. Didn't know the name for it because, you know, it was 19 or whatever, 1850 whatever, but at any rate, [01:07:30] I saw him doing it, and he looked up and he saw me, as when I was on my walk, you know, I had cut-offs and blue jeans, or cut-off blue jeans and t-shirt-
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: -but the only reason he knew I was Native was because I carried- they gave me a medicine pouch in Detroit, and I was carrying it, and uh- he could sense there was tobaccos and things in it. So he knew I was some sort of religious person, and then, I wha- there was a white albino deer that come [sic] out of the swamp [01:08:00] and next to us and it ran down the path back home, and he turned around to watch the deer, and when he turned back, I was gone to him, and he was gone to me.
So when he gets home, right, to his wife, who- who was a vegetarian, and she could feed the animals out of her hand. She was so spiritual and religious that she could do that, and she asked him who- who was it- he asked her, "Who was it that I saw?" And a ghostly figure because he was like a ghost to me, I could see through him and he could see through me, you know?[01:08:30] And uh- she says uh, "What you saw was the one who's gonna follow after you." Now, he thought it was in his lifetime, so he was looking for me his whole lifetime.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: But it wasn't to be, now, it was 150 years later, or so, that that was gonna happen, but he saw in the future and I saw in the past-
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: -and we shared that moment, you know, just for an instant. So, his wife, on her deathbed, this is what she says. She says, "I'm grateful," [01:09:00] she knows I'm [sic] dying, she knew she was dying, "I'm grateful because I get to go see all my dead children that went before me and all my relatives."
Interviewer: Mm-hmm.
Art: Their father and mother and all those people, and so she was grateful for that part. She was at peace with that part of it.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: And she told her children, she says, "You make sure that you don't love this Earth because God's opposed to it, there's something wrong here that happened." You know? And she says, "Don't be- don't be in love [01:09:30] with this place he- here. Your place is at home in heaven, it's not here," and then uh-, "You go to church, go to confession, and make sure you baptize your babies, that- that's what your-," to he- her daughters, right? "That's your mission here. That's what you're in charge of.
You keep yourself square, so- and pure and you- you know, you'd help the next generation." And so, now we've gotten to the point where they're falling away. They don't want to do any of that, so that- that's where they're-- And what it is, there's a hole in their heart and they're trying to fill it with these drugs and numb themselves. They don't feel good because they miss-- It's like missing somebody, went away in the service or something um. Okay, you're glad that they're still alive and they're still out there, but you want them here. You want them back. And so that's a thing, then the drug thing is--
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: -it makes the hole bigger, doesn't make it smaller and they're never satisfied. What happens is you start out maybe smoking marijuana, then you got to have something stronger. Then you've got to have something stronger to the point where you-where you disintegrate. And tha-that-that's the-the fear I see from my, um, for the tribe itself. And [unintelligible 01:10:46] you know, the very same thing that you know, kept--- my sister says that she sees more people getting educated. Okay, there's more grants, there's more, the tribe helps out and all that. We're going to get more educated people. Um, that's great, but that same money is how they're fueling the, um, drug habit.
Interviewer: Mm.
Art: You know, it's almost like a two-edged sword. You know, we're glad that we have it and we're grateful that we have it, but we got to use it the right way. You know we can't-- if you're just going to take your per diem and buy more drugs, that's not going to help you in the end. You know? You're not going to last long in doing that.
Interviewer: Yeah. It's true.
Art: That's-that,s what I see, and because we know that you don't need all these things to live. And you- we were happier when we was immersed in the love of everyone and our aunts and uncles and everybody would come over. In fact, what the natives would do on a Sunday, they would all drive around. If they had cars, they'd drive around the to the other Native Americans to see their relatives. They never called up and asked, "Can we come over?"
They just came over and if they came over, you automatically knew, you knew you had to feed them. Then you ran around and bought chickens or whatever it took, you know? If somebody went fishing, or whatever it took to, uh, feed their relatives and friends that came over on a Sunday. Or you went to their house. Either way it was-it was, Sunday was the family thing and I know I miss those-those times because we were-we were young kids and, um, that's when we got to see everybody.
Visitors: That's something, um,other elders have also, uh, mentioned, when they were younger, just the togetherness with their-- People were nicer to each other and people met more often.
Art: Now I don't know about my sister, but we can go on these elder trips and there's a lot of the elders that I don't know. That never used to be.
Evelyn: Uh-huh. It's like now I'm going on this trip and I told Art, I said, "I know for sure two people on that trip I'm going on." He said, "Well, by the end of the trip, you'll know them." [chuckles]
Interviewer: Yeah, you'll make friends. Well, um, do you want to see the archives? There's a couple of things I want to show you in there. Well, first actually, as I indicated to you--
Evelyn: First, I've gotta go to the bathroom.
Interviewer: Oh, yeah. Go ahead. You come out this door and keep going down that way. It's at the end of the hall.
Art: I hope we did you some good. [crosstalk] There's a lot more things like that we know and we've experienced. Kind of unique. We-we, er, started out, you know, with no set plan. We just tried to help. That where the Title IV program- A guy- the guy actually came to our principal and the guy happened to be Dutch. And he got to thinking, you know he knew Dutch. He knew the Dutch language.
Interviewer: Yeah.
Art: [crosstalk] The first gen-
[01:13:43] [END OF AUDIO]
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